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General Questions

1. Is there an incumbent contractor for NASA IV&V?
Answer: Yes.  The IV&V services are currently provided through multiple award, Cost Plus Award Fee, Indefinite Delivery Indefinite Quantity contracts under NNG05CB16C with L-3 Services, Inc. and NNG05CB17C with Northrop Grumman (Recently novated to TASC). 

2. Who is the incumbent? 

Answer:  See Response to Question 1 above.
3. Who is the current vendor that provides IV&V services?

Answer:  See Response to Question 1 above.
4. Is the incumbent in good standing? 

Answer:  Yes.

5. Is the procurement T&M, FF, or CP?

Answer:  The current contracts are multiple award, Cost Plus Award Fee, Indefinite Delivery Indefinite Quantity contracts.  The new award will be a Cost Plus Award Fee type contract.
6. Is this the 1st time around for the existing incumbent?
Answer:  This is the 1st time around for Northrop Grumman (TASC), but not for L-3 Services, Inc. Prior to these awards, services were provided by Averstar, Inc. (now L-3 Services, Inc.) under NAS2-96024, a CPFF/IF IDIQ-type contract. Prior to the contract with Averstar, services were provided through multiple BPAs with SAIC and Averstar. 

7. Will NASA be issuing a RFP with set asides? 

Answer:  No.  This RFP is a full and open solicitation with Small Business Goals.  NASA currently has other opportunities which are available as small business set-asides.
8. Is the current vendor eligible to bid on this solicitation?

Answer:  Yes.

9. Would NASA consider adding an orals component/presentation as part of the procurement process?

Answer:  No.

10. Could the government elaborate on the 6 scenarios/challenges that were mentioned in the briefing?

Answer:  The Offeror shall respond to the 6 scenarios/challenges found in Article L.24 and provide responses in their mission suitability volume.
11. Could the government provide sample roles and responsibilities of the existing contractor staff at a labor category/organization level? Example: Junior IV&V Staff vs Senior??

Answer:  It is not the Government’s intent to provide this information.
12. Regarding small business utilization, is the Offeror encouraged to support/meet percentages in each category or will meeting the total target percentage be evaluated the same? Does NASA provide higher scoring based on the registration allocation?

Answer:  The Offeror is encouraged to support and meet goals in each small business category.  Higher scores may be provided but that is at the discretion of the Source Evaluation Board. The type of work being subcontracted to small businesses as well as the dollars will be evaluated by the Source Evaluation Board for strengths & weaknesses.
13. In the first year of the contract, do you anticipate the effort to grow, shrink or be about the same size as the last year of this current contract?

Answer:  The extent of growth or shrinkage will be determined based upon the IV&V budget.  It is difficult to predict what Congress will do. 
14. Can we access IMS for the IV&V papers? 
Answer:  All relevant documents will be provided on the Procurement Proposal Library at: http://www.nasa.gov/centers/ivv/recompete/index.html  
15. Will large business primes be held accountable for their small business goals? If so how?

Answer:  Large businesses will need to report their small business actual performance against their small business goals.  The Contractor will be evaluated on their performance against the Small Business Subcontracting Plan in accordance with the Performance Evaluation Plan.
16. When does the Government expect to release final RFP?

Answer:  The final RFP will be released after all questions relating to the Draft RFP have been addressed and changes to the solicitation are approved.
17. How many awards are expected?

Answer:  One

18. What schedule or contracting vehicle will be used?

Answer:  NASA intends to award a single Cost Plus Award Fee contract.

19. What is the proposed mechanism for the operating plan? Does a contractor have an opportunity to change it?

Answer:  Changes can be made to the operating plan 4 times a year per Clause H.10(c). All changes will be coordinated between the Government Contracting Officer and the Contractor.  

20. In regards to past performance questionnaires to customers, can we use that information and would it be of interest to NASA?

Answer:  No.  Use the questionnaire provided in the solicitation.

21. Where can we access statements of work? 
Answer:  The Statement of Work for the IV&V Services requirement is contained in Attachment A of the Draft Request for Proposal.
22. When final RFP is released will you provide details about labor categories?

Answer:  No

23. When will you address the draft RFP questions?

Answer:  Questions and answers will be provided on the FedBizOpps website as soon as answers can be obtained.  

24. Will we define categories and critical positions and resources/roles to meet them?

Answer:  NASA does not intend to define labor categories or critical positions. This information is to be provided by Offerors.

25. Miscellaneous - GSFC Clauses http://gdms.gsfc.nasa.gov - The link provided for the GSFC clauses is not functioning.  Would the government either provide those clauses in full or provide a link to download the complete clause. 

Answer:   The Goddard Policies and procedures are found at the above link. All GSFC clauses are provided in full text in the RFP.
Section B
Clause B.5 - Estimated Cost Increases makes references to individual task orders in subsections (a) and (b). The government indicated at Industry Day that this was not a Task Order contract. We recommend that the government remove the reference to task orders.

26. Answer:  This GSFC clause is written in general terms to accommodate completions and IDIQ type contracts.  This is not a task order contract; therefore the Contractor shall notify the Contracting Officer when it has reason to believe that the total cost for performance, exclusive of any fee, will be either greater or substantially less than the total estimated cost stated in the contract.
Section C
27. Section C.2(d), pg C-6, Reference:  The Contractor understands and agrees to the following: 

a. Variation in the number or type of specific activities to be supported shall not constitute a change to the Contract, and shall not entitle the Contractor to an equitable adjustment.

b. Variation in the magnitude or mix of resources needed by the Contractor to deliver support shall not constitute a change to the Contract, and shall not entitle the Contractor to an equitable adjustment.

Recommendation:  The language of contract clause C.2(d) seems to run contrary to the FAR clause incorporated in Section I, 52.243-2 Changes – Cost-Reimbursement. Alternate II.  The Changes clause requires the Government to grant an equitable adjustment whenever the Government changes, among other things, the “Description of services to be performed.”  A variation in the type of specific activities to be supported would constitute such a change.  By including this clause the Government is requiring contractors to give up their legal right to an equitable adjustment.  This may be contrary to federal procurement policy and regulation.  We recommend that provision (d) of this clause be removed from the Solicitation.

Answer:  As stated in section (e) of the clause changes in the functional areas of responsibility, as established in Attachment A, Statement of Work, may constitute a change to the scope of the Contract and the contractor may be entitled to an adjustment.  Variations in the number or type of specific activities and/or variations in the magnitude or mix of resources shall not constitute a change to the Contract, and shall not entitle the Contractor to an equitable adjustment.  Those types of activities will be considered as cost growth/overrun and should be handled in accordance with clause B.5. For clarification purposes paragraph (d)(1) and (d)(2) will include the text “that are within the scope of the Statement of Work (or contract)”. See Revised Clause C.2.
28. Clause C.2 (d) (1) and (2)


(1)
Variation in the number or type of specific activities to be supported shall not constitute a change to the Contract, and shall not entitle the Contractor to an equitable adjustment.

(2)
Variation in the magnitude or mix of resources needed by the Contractor to deliver support shall not constitute a change to the Contract, and shall not entitle the Contractor to an equitable adjustment.

Variation in Services requirements is not clear.  In accordance with C.2 the number or type of "Activities" or "Resources" shall not constitute a change to the Contract.   Terms of this Section appear to conflict with Contract Clause FAR 52.243-2 - Changes.  For example in accordance with FAR 52.243-2 the Contractor may be entitled to an equitable adjustment should the required place of performance of the services change, however, per conditions established within C.2,  changes to required facilities, i.e. 'resources", would not entitle contractor to an equitable adjustment unless there is a change in the functional area of responsibility.  Would the government please clarify?

Answer:  See response to #27 above.
29. Clause C.2(e)  “Changes in the functional areas of responsibility, as established in Attachment A, Statement of Work, may constitute a change to the scope of the Contract; however, the Contractor understands that the Statement of Work is intended to be construed broadly to achieve IV&V Services objectives.”  Please confirm Offerors will have an opportunity to propose an equitable adjustment to our estimated cost and maximum available award fee if the Government changes or modifies the Statement of Work to the extent the change requires Offerors to change its staffing mix or skills sets that are not available from existing staffs at the time the SOW change is made.

Answer:  Yes.
Section G

30. Section G.4(b) & PEP Section V.A, Pg G-11 and Pg 9, Reference: G.4b states changes to PEP are unilateral and can be done prior to start of rating period.  PEP section V.A states the changes have to be issued to contractor 30 days prior to the start of the evaluation period. Recommendation:  Please consider modifying section G.4b to make it consistent with the applicable PEP section V.A

Answer:  G.4 (b) is a standard NASA FAR clause and will not be changed.  The PEP further defines the period of time in which the Government may make unilateral changes. 

31. Clause G.4(e) - The amount of award fee which can be awarded in each evaluation period is limited to the amounts set forth at elsewhere in this Contract. Award fee which is not earned in an evaluation period cannot be reallocated to future evaluation periods. Would the government consider allowing for the possibility of carrying over unearned fee to a future period if it approved in advance by the Contracting Officer?

Answer:  No.

32. Clause G.12, Attachment J, List of Government Furnished Property:  Part A:  Will the Government provide office space for the winning contractor during Phase-In?  Part B:  Will the Government provide access to the Mollohan building for town hall meetings with the incumbent workforce during Phase-In?
Answer:  Part A – Approximately 25-30 spaces will be available for Phase-In.
Answer:  Part B – Mollohan building is not a Government facility.  If the Offeror wishes to utilize the building, the government can provide a point of contact so the Offeror can make their own arrangements.

33. Clause G.17 & Att K Advanced Agreement Between the Parties: Requirement to Provide Contract Historical Data Reference: Many of the items listed to be supplied are proprietary in nature and are protected from release.  How a Contractor staffs a cost-plus contract, what the Contractor pays its employees, what amount of merit increases/escalation a Contractor provides its employees, how it identifies and selects labor qualifications when performing a contract, and how it supports the contract with indirect labor are all things that distinguish one proposal from another when competing for work. Clause G.17 indicates that one purpose behind requiring this information is to ensure realistic pricing of future proposals.  However, it is each individual Offeror’s responsibility to ensure their pricing is reasonable when submitting a proposal, not the responsibility of the incumbent to provide bidders the data to do so. Also, the clause goes on to state that unrealistic and unsubstantiated pricing could become an inappropriate discriminator among competing Offerors.  However, if an Offeror provides unrealistic and unsubstantiated pricing, then this should be a discriminator.  Again, it is not the incumbent’s role to ensure that their competition’s pricing is realistic and substantiated.  Recommendation:  The Offeror recommends that clause G.17 and Attachment K be removed from the Solicitation when the Final RFP is released.  This will promote competition rather than hinder it.

Answer:  This is a post award clause.  As stated in the clause, NASA may issue a competitive solicitation for a follow-on effort for services similar to those provided under this contract.   As part of the follow-on competition, NASA may include historical labor category descriptions, full-time equivalents (FTEs), average direct labor rates, and other information from this contract in the follow-on solicitation for use by all potential Offerors.  This is information that our industry partners have found to be extremely valuable, especially the incumbent contractor.  This information does not allow the non-incumbent to underbid the requirement and win the contract because of its low price.   We do not believe that the clause hinders competition.   The clause remains in the final RFP.

34. Clause G.17 and Attachment K - ADVANCED AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE PARTIES:  REQUIREMENT TO PROVIDE CONTRACT HISTORICAL DATA (GSFC 52.242-91)(SEPT 2010)  (a)NASA may issue a competitive solicitation for a follow-on effort for services similar to those provided under this contract.   As part of this follow-on competition, NASA may include historical labor category descriptions, full-time equivalents (FTEs), average direct labor rates, and other information from this contract in the follow-on solicitation for use by all potential Offerors.  Including this data in the solicitation is intended to ensure a comprehensive and fair evaluation of competitive proposals and increase the probability that realistic pricing is provided in future proposals submitted.   Minimizing the potential risk for unrealistic or unsubstantiated pricing materially reduces the risk that cost/price could become an inappropriate discriminator among competing Offerors.  (b) Based on the above, the Contractor shall, within 30 days and in response to a written request from the Contracting Officer, provide and deliver all of the information included in Attachment K, Contract Historical Data, of the contract.

The requirements in G.17 and Attachment K requests offerors to agree to provide information that would cause competitive harm if the information were to be released under a Freedom of Information Act Request.  We request that the Government remove the requirements contained in G.17 and Attachment K.

Answer:  See Response to Question #33 above.
Section H

35. Clause H.14 - Rights in Data.  Would the government please clarify why data rights clauses are applicable to this procurement?

Answer:  The resulting contract is considered to be for R&D Services.
36. Clause H.15 / p. H-35,Attachment M - “The incorporation of these enhancements does not relieve the Contractor from the responsibilities of meeting all other contract terms and conditions and requirements in the Statement of Work and other contract attachments.” How will the Government evaluate Offerors’ proposed Enhancements?  We recommend that Attachment M to Volume I be replicated within Subfactor A of  Volume II,  and that evaluation criteria be added to Section M . We further recommend that the evaluation criteria be geared to determine the added value of proposed enhancements/innovations. In this way the government benefits from having any innovations both included in the contract and evaluated. 

Answer:  Contract attachment M is submitted with the Offer volume.  However, the contractor proposed enhancement/innovations are evaluated under mission suitability.   See fourth paragraph under section L.24 (a) and first paragraph under M.3 (a).

Section I

37. Clause I.109 (C) and (D), Page 159, Security Requirements for Unclassified Information Technology Resources:  
Part A:  There are two security C(3) – IT Security Management Plan and C(4) IT Security Plan which requires FISMA compliance. Are both of these required even when tools and systems are being used in the NASA network and the IV&V contractor may not have any System Administration responsibilities? 
Answer:   If the contractor identifies in their IT Security Management Plan that they will only be using equipment on-site covered by an existing security plan then the full IT Security Plan would not be required.  However, if the contractor has off-site users, and identifies such in their IT Security Management Plan, the full IT Security Plan would be required.

Part B:  This Section states that access shall be provided to the extent required to carry out a program of IT inspection (to include vulnerability testing), investigation and audit to safeguard against threats and hazards to the integrity, availability and confidentiality of NASA Electronic Information or to the function of IT Systems.  Is this applicable only if the Contractor or subcontractor is hosting tools or systems used by NASA in the Contractor’s or subcontractor’s Network?

Answer:  Third party auditing is required for certification and validation of any IT security plan.  Therefore, if the contractor has a system which requires an IT security plan, rights must be given on that system for inspection.  

Section J

Section K

38. Provision K.1 - Representations, Certifications - There are several certifications that do not seem to be applicable to this procurement.  For example (xiii) 52.223-1 Biobased Product Certification as well as the certifications contained in subparagraphs (xiv), (xvii), (xviii), (xix) do not appear to be appropriate for this procurement.  Would the government please remove any non-applicable certifications.

Answer:   No. The clause indicates the applicability of each certification.

39. Section K.1(2)(viii), Pg K-66, Reference: Certification of Toxic Chemical Release Reporting is required. Recommendation:   This may have been checked in error.  As such, please consider deselecting “Certification of Toxic Chemical Release Reporting”.

Answer:   FAR 23.906(b) states “Insert the provision at 52.223-13, Certification of Toxic Chemical Release Reporting, in all solicitations for competitive contracts expected to exceed $100,000 and competitive 8(a) contracts, unless it has been determined in accordance with 23.905(b) that to do so is not practicable;” The determination at 23.905(b) has not been made, therefore the provision will not be deselected.

Section L

40. Provision L.16( c) (2), Safety and Health Plan:  This Section states that the work includes construction, alteration or repair of facilities in excess of the simplified acquisition strategy.  Please provide specifics as to what construction, alteration, or repairs are anticipated by the agency that will be covered by this contract. 
Answer:  No construction, alteration, or repairs are anticipated 

41. Provision L.18 (d)(2) Please clarify the requirement contained in paragraph L.18(d)(2) concerning which subcontractors are required to submit the information contained in paragraphs (a)-(c).  Does this mean that any subcontractor with a proposed value in excess of 10 percent of prime’s total contract value must submit?
Answer:  Yes.
42. Provision L.18 (2), Determination of Compensation Reasonableness:   Part A:  This Section requires including personnel subject to union agreements.  Are there presently any CBAs on the incumbent contract?  If yes, will the Government please provide specifics on the CBAs? Part B:  Additionally, are there any applicable wage determinations required in performance of this work scope? If yes, will the Government please provide the appropriate WDs?
Answer:  There are no Collective Bargaining Agreements on the incumbent contracts.  It has been determined that the Service Contract Act does not apply to this award; therefore, no wage determinations will be provided.

43. Provision L.19(g)- Reference: The Offeror shall disclose its intention to acquire any parts, supplies, materials or equipment, to fabricate an item of equipment for use under any contract resulting from this solicitation when that item of equipment:  will be titled to the under the provisions of the contract; is not included as a contract deliverable; and the Contractor intends to charge the costs of materials directly to the contract. Recommendation:  Add the word ‘Government” after the phrase “will be titled to the…” 

Answer:  This will be corrected.
44. Provision L.22 (a) (2) - Offerors and proposed significant subcontractors defined as any subcontract that is likely to meet or exceed 25% of the Offeror’s proposed contract value shall forward one (1) additional copy of their Cost Proposal, marked “NNG11310421R/NASA Proposal Evaluation Material”, to their cognizant Defense Contract Audit Agency (DCAA) office.  A copy of the proposal transmittal letter to DCAA shall be forwarded to the Contracting Officer for each cost proposal (prime and significant subcontractors) responding to this RFP. Please clarify if this is in addition to the one copy identified for DCAA in the table contained within L.22 (a) (1)?

Answer:  Only one copy of their cost proposal should be sent to DCAA.

45. Provision L.22 (b), Volume III Proposal Content:  The table on page L-82 of the DRFP provides cost volume content and page limitations.  Please confirm that the General Cost Volume Narrative which would contain  “Other than Cost & Pricing Data” such as: supporting detail to productive hour  calculations, direct labor rate development, Indirect rate developments and application , Subcontractor price analysis, and other assumptions, are excluded from the BOE page limitation as identified on page L-82.
Answer:  Information requested in the cost Exhibits (1-17) are excluded from the page limitation (e.g., PRODUCTIVE WORK YEAR CALCULATIONS  (Exhibit 12), SUMMARY OF INDIRECT RATES (Exhibit 4)).  However, there are no exhibits requesting information on direct labor rate development, subcontractor price analysis and other assumptions; therefore, if the Offeror needs to provide that information in order to provide the Government insight into its cost estimating thought processes and methodology, then it will be treated as part of the BOE page limitation. 
46. Provision L.22 (b), p. L-82
PROPOSAL CONTENT AND PAGE LIMITATIONS Table - List of acronyms is excluded from Past Performance Volume IV page count only.  Please confirm that lists of acronyms are excluded from page count in all volumes, not just Past Performance Volume IV.

Answer:   The list of acronyms should be in the mission suitability volume only and excluded from the page count.  This will be corrected.

47. Provision L.22 (b) - The Proposal Component Table includes the Small Business Subcontracting Plan and Deviations & Exceptions to be included in volume IV – Past Performance Volume. Since the Small Business Subcontracting Plan includes costs, we request that the government move this Plan to the Cost Volume.  

Answer:   Provision L.26, Past Performance Volume Paragraph (a)(14) Volume IV requires the submission of the Small Business History of the Offeror.  Volume II, Mission Suitability requires the submission of the Small Business Subcontracting Plan as part of Subfactor C – Small Business Utilization.   
48. Provision L.22(b), p. L-82; L.24(b) Subfactor A, p. L-89; L.25(b)(3) BASIS OF ESTIMATES (BOE), p. L-104 (b) Basis of Estimates, 35 pages*” and “In order to simplify the proposal preparation and evaluation process for this technical approach/capability subfactor, NASA has selected a subset of IV&V projects and activities (“Selected Project/Activities or SPAs”) from the Mission Forecast (See Table 1 below). If the Government requires BOEs for the entire Mission Forecast, would the Government consider increasing the BOEs page limit to 100 pages?

Answer:  The government will revise the page limitation to 100 pages for the BOE.
49. Provision L.22(b) Page L-82- Does the Government want us to include past performance questionnaires with the proposal or have clients submit them separately?

Answer:  Past performance questionnaires should be submitted directly to the Contracting Officer in accordance with Provision L.26.  The questionnaires are NOT a part of the Past Performance Volume.  The table in the Final RFP will be revised accordingly.

50. Provision L.22(b) Page L-82- Can the Government please clarify what is meant by Customer Evaluations?
Answer:  See Provision L.26 Paragraph (a)(13) – Recent customer evaluations of past performance including award fee evaluation results, Fee Determination Official letters, Annual Performance Evaluation Forms, etc.  This is excluded from the page limitation of the past performance volume.

51. Provision L.22(b) Page L-82- The table requires Deviations and Exceptions in two separate volumes. Can you clarify what or which should go in each?

Answer:  Deviations and Exceptions are to be provided in each volume.  The proposal preparation instructions for each volume specify what deviations and exceptions are to be included, if any.

52. Provision L.22 (c) Deviations and Exceptions appears in both Volume III – Cost Volume and Volume IV – Past Performance.  We request that Deviations and Exceptions be included in either the Offer Volume or the Cost Volume.

Answer:   Deviations and Exceptions appear in all volumes.  The table will be corrected to be clearer.

53. Provision L.24 - Instructs Offerors to provide the technical approach for a subset of the IV&V projects (Table 1).  Please clarify whether the Government wants costs for only those subsets provided in Table 1 or for the entire Mission Forecast.

Answer:  Costs should be provided for the entire Mission Forecast.  Technical approach will be provided for Table 1 projects ONLY.

54. Provision L.24 (a), Pg L-88, Reference: A list of acronyms is identified as a requirement in the text describing the Mission Suitability Volume (Volume II) but is listed in the contents list for the Past Performance Volume (Volume IV). Question:  Where should we place the acronym list?  Will it be exempt from page count restrictions?

Answer:   The list of acronyms should be in the Mission Suitability Volume.  The Final RFP will make this clear. The list of acronyms is excluded from the page limitations.
55. Provision L.24  - Subfactor A-- Technical Approach/Capability  Page L-88 Reference:  The Offeror shall provide a narrative response that describes its overall approach towards accomplishing ALL of the requirements of SOW.  

 Subfactor B - Management Approach Page L-93 Reference: The Offeror shall provide a narrative response that describes its management approach towards accomplishing all of the requirements of the SOW and the Mission Forecast  

Recommendation:   

Section L instructions for Subfactor A also require that the format of the SOW be followed which can lead to inclusion of SOW 3.6 Management in the Technical Capability Subfactor response.  These instructions can be variously interpreted as to how to partition the management write-up and where to cover certain topics; which may lead to responses that do not address the management requirements in a clear and consistent manner.  As such, please clarify in what Subfactor the Government intends for Offerors to address SOW 3.6.  

Answer:  Final RFP changed to exclude SOW 3.6 and 4.0 from Subfactor A – Technical Approach/Capability.  These requirements are to be addressed in Subfactor B – Management Approach.
56. Provision L.24
MISSION SUITABILTY PROPOSAL INSTRUCTIONS (COMPETITIVE) (APR 2010) Paragraph(a)
Mission Suitability Proposal Format SELECTED PROJECT/ACTIVITIES

Reference: Page L-89:  In order to simplify the proposal preparation and evaluation process for this technical approach/capability subfactor, NASA has selected a subset of IV&V projects and activities (“Selected Project/Activities or SPAs”) from the Mission Forecast (See Table 1 below).

Page L-103: Offerors are required to propose costs only for year one based on the Mission Forecast.  The subsequent years (years 2-5) should be estimated based on escalation applied to the first year cost estimate.

Recommendation:   Please clarify which version of the IV&V Projects designated as a SPA is to be included in the Staffing Profile and the Cost Proposal; the version that includes the special requirements listed in Table 1 on page L-89 or the version that responds to the mission forecast document.

Answer:  The SPA’s listed on Table 1 are to simplify the proposal preparation and are not to be used for cost purposes.  For cost purposes the Offeror shall use the mission forecast.

57. Provision L-24 - Subfactor B-- Management Approach Page L-94
Reference:  The Offeror shall provide a detailed Phase-in Plan that addresses, at a minimum, the Offeror's approach to phase-in sufficient to ensure continuity and a smooth transition with the incumbent Contractors during the up to 45-day phase-in period.  The phase-in plan shall clearly demonstrate an ability to assume full contract responsibility on the effective date of the contract.  

Recommendation:   Please clarify the basis for the Phase-in Plan and costs:
•
Should the Phase-in Plan and costs be structured to reflect a build-up of personnel to the first-year level in the staffing plan (which includes non-agency IV&V projects)?

•
Or should it be based on transitioning the current agency projects?

Answer:  The Phase-in plan should be developed to transition existing projects.  A list of current projects will be provided on the Procurement Proposal Library at: http://www.nasa.gov/centers/ivv/recompete/index.html  

58. Provision L.24(b) Subfactor B – Management Approach - Reference:  The Offeror shall identify its minimum essential critical positions required to meet the requirements of the SOW.  Additionally, the rationale for identifying these positions as critical shall be provided, as well as a description of each position.  The description shall include the position title, to whom the position reports, summary of duties and responsibilities, any specific requirements/licensing, and minimum education and minimum experience required for the position.   Please confirm that the positions descriptions for (1) critical positions and for (2) other specific labor categories are each limited to one-half page length and excluded from the page count.
Answer:  All position descriptions including critical positions are to be no more than one-half page in length.  There is no total page limitation on position descriptions.

59. Provision L.24(b) Subfactor C – Small Business Utilization (SBU) Small Business Subcontracting. Reference:  For additional information on underrepresented areas by NAICS Industry Subsectors, Offerors may reference the following website: https://www.acquisition.gov/references/sdbadjustments.htm  Please confirm that this link is the correct URL with the latest available data for NAICS.
Answer:  In light of an imminent NASA Class Deviation suspending the use of FAR Subpart 19.12 regarding SDB participation evaluation factors and subfactors, the final RFP will be modified to remove all SDB Participation related criteria, clauses and provisions.
60. Provision L.24 (b) SPAs Page L-89 Reference:  Table 1 Special Requirements numbers 3) and 5) Question: Please clarify if there is any difference between the requirements to “serve as Project Manager” and “performing the entire work including the project management functions”.  Are the project management functions being asked for in number 5) only those performed in support of an assigned NASA IV&V Project Manager?

Answer:  In Special Requirements number 3) we expect the offer to be the Project Manager responsible for all the project management functions.  In Special Requirements number 5) the subcontractor is responsible for the entire work including having a Project Manager responsible for all the project management functions.
61. Provision L.24 (b) Staffing Plan Page L-94 Reference:  Staffing Plan chart for initial staffing and number of personnel by skill category for each of the areas of the SOW. Question:  Should the data be provided at the major divisions of the SOW (the six functions 3.1 through 3.6) or is finer granularity desired (e.g., down to the individual project level)?  

Answer:  Staffing Plan Data should be provided at the core functions of the SOW (3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.4, 3.5 and 3.6).  
62. Provision L.24 (b) Staffing Plan and Position Descriptions Page L-94 References: (1) Staffing Plan chart for initial staffing and number of personnel by skill category for each of the areas of the SOW.  (2) Instruction on L-94 - Provide written Position Descriptions for each specific labor category envisioned necessary to meet contract requirements. Question: Are the asked-for skill categories in the Staffing Plan the same as the labor categories defined in our position descriptions?

Answer:  Yes

63. Provision L.24 (b) Staffing Plan and L.25 (b) (3) BOE Page L-90, L-93 & L-101 Reference:  Staffing Plan chart for initial staffing and number of personnel by skill category for each of the areas of the SOW. Question: Should the staffing plan contain the LOE estimates prepared for the projects identified in RFP Table 1 in accordance with instructions on L-90 which  reflect the special requirements given in that table or should the LOE estimates for these projects be based on our standard BOE approach (see L-101) for the projects irrespective of the special requirements?
Answer:  The Staffing Plan Chart on page L-94 refers to the staffing for the entire contract.  The Offeror shall follow their standard BOE approach to satisfy the requirements on page L-104. 

64. Provision L.24(b) Subfactor C, Commitment to the Small Business Program (2), p. L-100
 “If the subcontractor(s) is known, Offerors must connect the work to the subcontractor and specify the extent of commitment to use the subcontractor (s) (enforceable vs. non-enforceable commitments).”Please confirm the reference to “subcontractor(s)” refers to Small Business subcontractor rather than all subcontractors. If the aforementioned refers only to Small Businesses, request the Government consider revising the requirements under L.24(b) Subfactor C, Commitment to the Small Business Program (3), 1st sentence to read, “All Offerors shall provide information demonstrating the extent of commitment to support their development of small business subcontractors.”

Answer:   The title for this section is Commitment to Small Business Program.  Hence, the reference to Small Business subcontractor. We have reviewed your recommendation however the language is consistent with NASA policy.  No changes will be made.
65. Provision L.24(b) Subfactor C - L-100; Page M-119  2(i) Reference: The Government refers in two places to the term “high technology” in relation to work to be performed by small business subcontractors but never defines the term.  Recommendation:  What does the Government consider to be “high technology”?

Answer:  For this solicitation “High Technology” refers to technical analysis tasks(e.g. requirements verification or design validation tasks, etc.) other than routine administrative type tasks. The final RFP will reflect this language.
66. Provision L.25(a), Year 2 through 5 Cost Estimate:  The instruction on Page L-103 states that “offerors are required to propose costs only for year one based on the Mission Forecast.  The subsequent years (years 2-5) should be estimated based on escalation applied to the first year estimate.”  Given this instruction, should offerors refrain from utilizing any Forward Pricing Rates (proposed/or agreed) in the development of the prices for years 2 through 5, and only apply an escalation factor?
Answer:  The Offeror should use their forward pricing rate agreements, as applicable, and/or respond in accordance with their disclosed accounting practices.
67. Provision L.25 (b) (3), Attachment K:  Will the Government be providing historical FTE/hour metrics, Weighted Average Hourly Rates, or any other data as identified in Attachment K, Contract Historical Data for reference to be utilized by prospective offerors?
Answer:  No.

68. Provision L.25 - Instructs Offerors as follows: Exhibit 3 requires the Contractor to indicate the labor skill mix, labor rates, Productive Hours and all ODCs associated with pricing the effort using the Statement of Work and the Mission Forecast.  The estimated hours and ODC shall be based on providing the required effort as per the Mission Forecast.  Since L.24 limits the technical response to the selected activities identified in L.24 Table 1, how will the Government determine reasonableness and cost realism if it does not have the technical solution for the entire Statement of Work and Mission Forecast?

Answer:   The Government believes that adequate information is being requested to thoroughly evaluate the Offeror’s proposal.   The Offeror narrative response that describes its overall approach towards accomplishing all of the requirements of SOW, the  Offeror’s approach and rationale to implement and staff each SPA, along with the Offeror’s BOEs, to name a few, should provide adequate information to determine reasonableness and cost realism.

69. Provision L.25 - States that Offerors are required to propose costs only for year one based on the Mission Forecast.  The subsequent years (years 2-5) should be estimated based on escalation applied to the first year cost estimate.   Please clarify that the government is not asking Offerors to propose outside of their disclosed practices.  Please confirm that when an Offeror has forward pricing rates beyond year 1 of the contract they should use those rates. 

Answer:   See Response to Question 63.
70. Provision L. 26 - The Offeror shall provide the following information on all past/current contract references that meet the above criteria for the prime Offeror and each significant subcontractor. Please confirm that the information requested in items numbered (1) through (16) is limited to those contracts referenced in the Past Performance Volume. 

Answer:   Correct.

71. Provision L.26(a) - Past Performance Volume (Sept 2010),  (a), page L-107, Prime Offerors shall furnish the information requested below for all of your most recent contracts (completed and ongoing) for similar efforts with a minimum average annual cost/fee incurred of $8M that your company has had within the last five (5) years of the RFP release date. Can the Government clarify what is meant by "cost/fee incurred"?

Answer:  Cost/fee incurred refers to the actual costs and fee billed for performance of similar efforts.

72. Provision L.26(a), p. L-107 - “Prime Offerors shall furnish the information requested below for all of your most recent contracts (completed and ongoing) for similar efforts with a minimum average annual cost/fee incurred of $8M that your company has had within the last  five (5) years of the RFP release date. Indicate which contracts are most related (i.e. similar in size, content, and/or complexity) and….”Given the 30-page limitation for Section L.26(a) Information from the Offeror, providing the Government requested information for all contracts may far surpass the 30-page limitation.  Accordingly, would the Government consider limiting the past performance information from Offerors to up to the three most relevant contracts?  If the Government is concerned about the depth and breadth of expertise and capabilities, Offeror suggests the Government consider requesting a list of related or relevant contracts in Section L.26(a) while only providing details (i.e., items 1 – 16) for up to three most relevant past performance contracts.

Answer:  The Government is requesting information on all contracts that are considered relevant.  The Government will increase the page limitation from 30 to 35.

73. Provision L.26(a)/ p. L-108 - “A proposed significant subcontractor for this procurement is defined as any proposed subcontractor that is estimated to meet/exceed an average annual cost/fee of $5M.  Note, the definition of significant subcontractor for the past performance evaluation may be different than for the cost evaluation.” Please confirm the definition of significant subcontractor is any proposed subcontractor the Offeror estimates to meet or exceed an average annual cost/fee of $5M of the submitted cost proposal.

Answer:  Yes.

74. Provision L.26(a)/ p. L-108 - “The Offeror shall provide the information requested below for any significant subcontractor(s) for those similar efforts within the last five (5) years of the RFP release date with a minimum average annual cost/fee incurred of at least 25%  of the estimated average annual dollar value of the proposed significant subcontract.” Would the Government consider removing the aforementioned qualifier from the Past Performance Volume. Prime Offerors have no certain means of validating whether a proposed subcontractor’s past performance citation meets the criteria of “at least 25% of the estimated average annual dollar value of the proposed significant subcontract” of an existing or past contract where the proposed significant subcontractor is or was performing work of similar scope and complexity?

Answer:  Offerors and their proposed significant subcontractor are highly encourageD to work together in order to comply with the requirements of the past performance volume.   

75. Provision L.26(a)/ paragraph 2 Reference: A proposed significant subcontractor for this procurement is defined as any proposed subcontractor that is estimated to meet/exceed an average annual cost/fee of $5M.  Question: Will the government allow submission of past/current contract references of subcontractors not defined as significant subcontractors?
Answer:   The Government is only requesting past performance information on Prime and significant subcontractors in accordance with the provision of L.26.
76. Provision L.26(a) Past Performance Volume - Reference: The Offeror shall provide the following information on all past/current contract references that meet the above criteria for the prime Offeror and each significant subcontractor. Question:  Do items (15) & (16) on page L-110 apply to any contracts, or only to those being submitted as PP references, as indicated at the start of this paragraph on page L-108?

Answer:  Items 15 and 16 on page L-110 apply to your most recent contracts (completed or ongoing) for similar efforts with a minimum average annual cost/fee incurred of $8M that your company has had within the last five (5) years.  

77. Provision L.26(a) Past Performance Volume - Reference: The Offeror shall provide the following information on all past/current contract references that meet the above criteria for the prime Offeror and each significant subcontractor.  Question:  Is item (16) on page L-110 excluded from the page count requirement of Section L.22 Proposal Preparation – General Instructions on page L-82?

Answer:  The solicitation will be revised to exclude item (16).
78. Provision L.26(b)/Paragraph 1 - Reference: Prior Customer Evaluation (Past Performance Questionnaires) – In this section the Offeror shall instruct each of its references to return the questionnaire directly to the Government in a sealed envelope. Question: Would the Government consider allowing the Offeror’s references to return the questionnaire directly to the Government by email or sealed envelope by mail? It has been our experience that the Government receives a higher return rate if client references are allowed to return questionnaires by email.
Answer:  Yes. The questionnaires can be submitted via e-mail to the contracting officer. 
79. Provision L.26(b)/Paragraph 1 - Reference:  Prior Customer Evaluation (Past Performance Questionnaires) – The questionnaire respondent shall be a representative from the technical customer and responsible Contracting Officer. Question: Is the Government expecting one or two questionnaires to be returned for each reference? We have found that some Government customer’s will only complete one questionnaire if requested to complete two.
Answer:  The Government is expecting two questionnaires for each reference; one from the technical customer and one from the responsible Contracting Officer. At least one questionnaire should be received from each reference. 
Section M
80. Provision M.3 (c) Reference: The Mission Suitability evaluation will include the results of any cost realism analysis.  The realism of proposed costs may significantly affect the Offeror’s Mission Suitability score. It appears that cost realism will be assessed as part of the Mission Suitability factor as well as the Cost Evaluation factor.  Please clarify how the assessments will differ (e.g. which of the 3 Mission Suitability subfactors will be evaluated for cost realism?)
Answer:  For the cost proposal evaluation, a cost realism assessment is used to generate the Government’s probable cost, which is presented to the Source Selection Authority.  For the Mission Suitability evaluation, the cost realism assessment is used to determine whether there are inconsistencies between the technical approach narrative and its implementation.  This may be in the form of an inappropriate skill mix, an under-estimate of the hours needed to implement the technical approach or the absence of critical other direct costs, etc.  Proposing the resources necessary to implement a technical approach reflects a technical understanding.  Ultimately, the Government expects cost and Mission Suitability proposals to be in consistent.
81. Provision M.3
MISSION SUITABILITY FACTOR (APR 2010) Subfactor B – Management Approach Page M-117 Reference: The Government will evaluate the Offeror’s rationale for identifying certain positions as critical positions for reasonableness and to ensure an understanding of requirements and the nature of the work.  The Offeror’s list of critical positions and descriptions of each critical position will be evaluated for effectiveness.  In addition, the proposed Position Descriptions of each specific labor category will be evaluated to determine the level of understanding by the Offeror of the contract requirements.

Recommendation:  Propose the following changes to the evaluation criteria for the critical positions:

The Government will evaluate the depth of the Offeror’s relevant experience and the experience of its team members for the ability to meet the requirements of the SOW.  The identified critical positions and justification will be evaluated for appropriateness based upon the Offeror’s technical approach and evaluated to determine the Offeror’s level of understanding of the contract requirements.  The position descriptions will be evaluated to determine the appropriateness based upon the Offeror’s technical approach and evaluated to determine the Offeror’s level of understanding of the contract requirements.  The following may be evaluated as an indication of a lack of judgment and/or a lack of understanding of the requirements:

•
Proposing Critical Positions or other positions that are deemed unnecessary or non-critical for effective and efficient contract performance.

•
Failing to propose Critical Positions or other positions that are deemed necessary or critical for effective and efficient contract performance.

The offeror’s critical personnel/positions will be evaluated, to include:

•
The offeror’s rationale for designating the proposed positions as critical.

•
The offeror’s information on the background, education, training, extent and applicability of related experience, special or unique qualifications and demonstrated performance references on critical personnel, including subcontractors, if applicable.

•
The offeror’s proposed critical individual’s commitment, the extent of their availability, and the company commitment for critical personnel staffing stability of the proposed positions.

Answer:  The Government is comfortable with the evaluation criteria as written; therefore, it will not be changed.

82. Provision M.5, 2nd paragraph, Page M-122 Reference:  “…. Evidence of a binding teaming agreement or other contractual agreement which creates legal responsibilities on the part of the significant subcontractors may be given more weight in the evaluation of significant subcontractors, in comparison to proposals that lack such agreements and/or evidence. …”  Question: Will this “evidence” be excluded from the page count of the Volume IV Past Performance (exclusions defined in L.22(b) table on pg L-82)?

Answer:  In the final RFP, the requirement for binding teaming agreements in Provision M.5 has been deleted.

83. Provision M.5, Pg M-123, Reference: “Offerors may provide the experience or past performance of a partner or affiliated or predecessor company to an Offeror (including a parent or affiliated company that is being otherwise proposed as a subcontractor on this effort) where the firm’s proposal demonstrates that the resources of the parent or affiliate or predecessor will affect the performance of the Offeror.” Questions:  Can the government more clearly define the term “predecessor”: is it referring to an entity that comes from an acquisition or a spinoff of a company?

Answer:  Yes, it could be either.
ATTACHMENTS

84. Statement of Work Section 2. -  Will the Government post all documents listed in this section and noted throughout the SOW (e.g. IV&V Technical Framework) in an e-Library in the near future?  

Answer:  All relevant documents will be provided on the Procurement Proposal Library at: http://www.nasa.gov/centers/ivv/recompete/index.html 
85. Statement of Work - Section 4 - Monthly Deliverables - Given a 3-day long weekend interruption, the 5-day delivery period could give the contractor only two days to deliver two monthly reports.  Would the Government allow Five (5) working days for the delivery of the reports? A 10-day period may be more desirable.

Answer:  The delivery date for monthly reports is five (5) business days not calendar days.

86. Attachment D
DD254
Would the government consider revising 1.b and 11 (as appropriate) to support storage?
Answer:  No.

Mission Forecast/SOW Questions

87. In Exhibit 18 from Section 3.1.1-3.1.24, all the projects listed under the mission forecast have mention of travel to several NASA locations.  Can the government provide details about travel/training plans?  

Answer:  For each of the projects listed in the Exhibit 18, Mission Forecast, Sections 3.1.1-3.1.24, the government has provided details regarding the travel associated with these projects.  Specific details provided includes: travel event, travel location and duration of the travel.  The government feels that this information provides sufficient detail for potential Offeror’s to develop their response to the RFP.   
Also, can the government please confirm if the full cost of the travel budget will need to be included as an ODC to this contract?  

Answer:  The Offeror should propose travel as an ODC in accordance with the mission forecast requirements.  Travel will be proposed for the first year and escalated for the other four years.
88. How much work has been performed in developing mission forecast EA for Orion, ARES, CCCE, JUNO and MSL?

Answer: Government does not understand this question, suggest resubmit.   

89. Does the Government have an estimated level of support labor house for IV&V in supporting the mission and their core set of functions? If so, can this estimate be provided?

Answer:  The Government does not maintain a “labor house” in support of our mission.  With the exception of civil servants, all labor resources are maintained by the contractors supporting our mission.   The Government develops a mission forecast (consistent with available funding) that defines the work to be performed over a period of time. It is the contractor’s responsibility to identify the amount of labor required to support these needs in a successful fashion.  As the work requirements in the mission forecast increases/decreases, it is the contractor’s responsibility to make adjustments to labor resources (as applicable/if warranted).

90. Is there any overlap between the current contract mission forecast and the RFP mission forecast? If so, are those Government in house estimates or current contract estimates going to be made available to all bidders?

Answer:   A listing of current projects supported can be found on the Government’s website (see URL below), comparing this listing to the RFP mission forecast, yes there is some overlap.  However, the government does not intend to provide any current contract estimates for these projects.  http://www.nasa.gov/centers/ivv/services/ivvprojects_current.html
91. Will the use of offsite resources be permitted to provide IV&V services for the mission forecast program?  

Answer:  The government does not prohibit the use of off-site resources in support of the IV&V services defined in the mission forecast.  The government is providing office space in Fairmont, WV and making office space available at other locations throughout the US that potential Offerors should take into consideration when developing their response to the RFP. 

92. Because of SOW- NV, R&D, TQE, what are some more concrete aspects of the proposal so that the resources can be estimated?

Answer:  The Government does not understand this question, suggest resubmit.   All of the items in the RFP/SOW represent current and/or future needs of the Government.  The government provided sufficient information in Exhibits 18 mission forecast and the mission forecast metadata for potential Offeror’s to develop their estimates.  

93. Sample mission is estimated but actuals will be based on real mission forecast?

Answer:  The Exhibit 18 mission forecast is constructed to represent characteristics and tasking of real and projected project types.   This allows for an assessment of vendor capability to support more than our currently supported projects, while trying to minimize the competitive advantage of current vendors over future bidders.  Subsequent to contract award, but prior to contract startup, the Government will provide a mission forecast for the applicable period.  The approach(es), effort  and cost estimates, labor rates, etc that the contractor uses in responding to the mission forecast shall  be consistent with those used in responding to the RFP mission forecast.

94. The system environments and applications subject to software IV&V support are not identified up front.  Is it understood from knowing the current projects and activities that most of the software IV&V activities are conducted in support of space systems and not ground systems?

Answer:   The government performs IV&V on both space and ground based systems.  Each year the list of projects and their associated system environment and applications varies.

95. Reference: The Contractor shall submit the operating plan to the Contracting Officer within fifteen (15) calendar days of receipt of the Government mission forecast or any revisions thereto.  Question: Will there be early drafts of mission reqs for new items in the mission forecast each year?

Answer:  As part of their planning and forecasting efforts, the Government will obtain information about new missions, emerging needs and requirements.  The Government will share this information, as appropriate, with the selected contractor over the course of conducting routine business.  This information may be exchanged via informal (status meetings, planning sessions, etc) and formal means (draft versions of the mission forecast).
96. All 3.1.x paragraphs, Reference: The statement “For this CY, the IV&V Program expects to perform the following analysis consistent with the IV&V Technical Framework.” Recommendation: The listed elements of the IV&V Technical Framework for a given project seem to be too extensive for a single CY and in some cases refer to work done in project phases that have already been completed.  Please consider changing the introduction to the requirement to “For this Project” instead of “For this CY”.  This would then serve to define the totality of Technical Framework tasking expected across the life cycle of the project and tasking in the given CY can be determined based on the schedule of the project.
Answer:  The Government intends to revise the referred to text in Exhibit 18 Mission Forecast, such that it is consistent with the timeframe identified at the beginning of the mission forecast.
97. All 3.1.x paragraphs, Question: Are we correct in proceeding on the basis that when creating a tasking and staffing profile for a specific project in the Mission Forecast we should align our tasking for the current CY to the project schedule (either as specified or assumed)?
Answer:   It is not clear what project schedule is being referred to with regard to this question as the Government did not provide any schedules as part of these efforts.  As Exhibit 18 Mission Forecast is a representative sample of an actual mission forecast, some of the project specific data had to be modified.  As such, Potential Offerors should utilize the information in the Mission Forecast metadata file. 
98. Exhibit 18, Mission Forecast:  There are numerous references to PBRA data throughout Exhibit 18: Mission Forecast.  Will the Government please identify where can this data be found?   

Answer:   The government will provide PBRA data on the Procurement Proposal Library for those projects in which a PBRA is available. 

99. All 3.1.x paragraphs, Reference:  Attached PBRA.  Question The reference PBRAs cannot be located in the DRFP package.  Will they be supplied with the final RFP?
Answer:   Yes. See Question #95 response.
100. All 3.1.x paragraphs, Reference:  The statement “For this CY,”. Question: Does this refer to the one year period covering [DATE] to [DATE] identified in the first sentence of the Mission Forecast document?  Will specific dates be provided in the Final RFP?
Answer:   Yes and Yes.
101. Sections 3.5.2 to 3.5.5, Pgs 20-21, Question: The contents of these sections are generic and lack specific details needed to determine tasking, staffing levels and travel. Will additional data/requirements be provided in the final RFP?
Answer:   No. 
102. Section 3.6.2, Pg 22, Reference: A requirement is given for SOW 3.6.1 but no reference is made to SOW 3.6.2. Question: Will specific Project Management requirements be identified in the final RFP version of the Mission Forecast and included in Section 3.6.2?  Possible items for inclusion would be project-specific reports (not part of the standard IV&V catalog); specialized test environments available for possible use; metrics of particular importance; risks that NASA wants assessed and tracked, etc.
Answer:   Specific project management requirements are identified in the existing mission forecast.  These requirements are of two types:  (a) those projects that the Government wants project management support and (b) those projects that the Government wants the contractor to perform project management services (rather than simply support the Government Project Lead).  For each project in Exhibit 18 Mission Forecast, Section 3.1 text exist that indicates the type of project management requirements to be performed.  For instance, in section 3.1.1 the following text is an example of project management requirements in a support role “…..the IV&V Program expects to perform the following analysis consistent with the IV&V Technical Framework:  1.1 Management and Planning (support), 1.2 Issue and Risk Tracking, 1.4 Management and Technical Review Support, 1.5 Criticality Analysis, 3.0 Verify and Validate Requirements, 5.0 Verify and Validate Design, and 6.0 Verify and Validation Implementation.   An example of project management requirement in a lead role is in section 3.1.10 which states “……perform the following analysis consistent with the IV&V Technical Framework:  1.1 Management and Planning (lead), 1.2 Issue and Risk Tracking, 1.4 Management and Technical Review Support, 1.5 Criticality Analysis, 3.0 Verify and Validate Requirements, 4.0 Verify and Validate Test Documentation, 5.0 Verify and Validate Design and 6.0 Verify and Validate Implementation”.
103. Mission Forecast/SOW, Reference: The subparagraph numbers for SWAT and R&D are reversed in the two documents.  SWAT is Section 3.2 in the SOW and 3.4 in the Mission Forecast, while R&D is 3.4 in the SOW and 3.2 in the Mission Forecast. Question:  Will a common numbering sequence between the SOW and the Mission Forecast be provided in the Final RFP package? Note that Section 1.1 of the SOW implies an order for subsections 3.1 through 3.6. This is the ordering followed by the Mission Forecast.
Answer:   This was a formatting error and will be corrected. The mission forecast will be revised to have consistent numbering with the SOW.
104. Bidder’s Technical Library:  Within the bidders technical library we are unable to find the following information which the incumbent contractors have access to and if included would improve our ability to provide an improved offer to NASA.  Could you add the following data to the technical library:

· Current mission forecast for FY10

· Current staffing with skill codes proposed to execute the FY10 mission forecast

· Incumbent contractors’ phase out plans

· List of current position descriptions

· Current IPEP for each mission within the FY10 forecast

Answer:   The current contract for IV&V services does not utilize the mission forecast approach to securing such services; as such the mission forecast for FY10 is not available.  
Projects that are currently receiving IV&V services are identified on our website at:  http://www.nasa.gov/centers/ivv/services/ivvprojects_current.html
The Government does not intend to provide a list of current staffing with skill codes on current work or a listing of current position descriptions.    The Government does not currently possess the incumbent’s phase out plans to provide per this request.  
For those projects/missions currently being worked and possess an IPEP, the Government will provide a copy of the IPEP. Potential Offerors should recognize that the information contained within these IPEPs is for information purposes only as Offerors are bidding to the mission forecast (and project specific characteristics identified in the project metadata) provided by the Government for these procurement efforts.   The information in these IPEPs may be incorrect, inaccurate and may not represent items that are approved, acceptable or encouraged practices by the Government given the SOW for these procurement efforts.  
105. Exhibit 18 - Page 9 - 3.1.11 SMAP -The IV&V Program efforts are concentrated on the spacecraft and the three instruments.  For this period, the IV&V expects to perform requirements, design and interface related analysis.  SMAP is slated to be launched November 2014. For this CY, the IV&V Program expects to perform the following analysis consistent with the IV&V Technical Framework:  1.1 Management and Planning (support), 1.2 Issue and Risk Tracking, 1.4 Management and Technical Review Support, 1.5 Criticality Analysis, 2.0 Verify and Validate Concept Documentation, 3.0 Verify and Validate Requirements, 4.0 Verify and Validate Test Documentation, 5.0 Verify and Validate Design and 6.0 Verify and Validate Implementation. Please clarify whether Implementation analysis is to be addressed for SMAP.
Answer:   Yes.  The Government will update this text in the final RFP. 
106. Given that the goal of the software assurance is to ensure that the app will continue to operate as intended while under malicious attack-to what extent are secure coding and secure software architecture to be addressed as an IV&V function?
Answer: The IV&V technical framework (IVV 09-01) and engineering catalog of methods provide guidance on “what and how” IV&V is to be conducted.  If security is a critical behavior of the system, and these items support the attainment of the goals and objectives described in IV&V 09-01, then there may be options to consider when formulating the plan for a particular project.

107. Could the government share any more details regarding contractor personnel requirements as it relates to skills, tools, years of experience, type of experience, etc?
Answer: No. The Offeror shall propose personnel requirements relative to their technical approaches they submit for the SOW/mission forecast.  

108. Could NASA provide details of the exact CASE tools or other custom or COTS tools being used by the program? If so please provide the list in order of importance?
Answer: The listing of tools offered by the IV&V Program is provided in the Procurement Proposal Library at: http://www.nasa.gov/centers/ivv/recompete/index.html .  The tools are not listed in any order of importance.

109. What hardware and software tools are now being used at the IV&V Facility to support and conduct its IV&V activities?
Answer:  See response to Question 104.

110. Where is the line in the sand regarding the utilization of SWAT tools? When in a testing situation, if we need to utilize those tools, would SWAT give us the tools to perform our testing or would we give them the software demo and have SWAT do the tests for us?
Answer:  The SWAT core function is to make sure the tools are available and accessible. SWAT has experts on board to assist in using the tools. It is up to the IV&V team (Contractor and Government) to use the tools and determine results.  

111. Are the projects you do requirements based?
Answer: Yes, we do have requirements and we also have our understanding of the requirements. The 3 technical questions that we utilize (Q1: What the software is supposed to do?  Q2: What the software is not supposed to do? and Q3: What the software is supposed to do under adverse conditions?) helps IV&V understand what the expectations are for the software given the system and user needs, this understanding may be beyond what is documented in the requirements.  IV&V takes the requirements into consideration but does not have to be strictly requirements driven. 
112. Can a contractor suggest tools to SWAT based on past successes?
Answer: Yes
113. Do you have any templates for software IV&V? Are the templates considered confidential?
Answer: We have some and they can be found in our IV&V Management System (IMS).  They are not confidential.  The IMS system can be accessed from the Procurement Proposal Library at: http://www.nasa.gov/centers/ivv/recompete/index.html 

114. Does NASA own templates that say how IVV will be conducted? Is this documented or more subjective?
Answer: The IV&V Technical Framework (IVV 09-01) and associated Engineering Catalog of Methods provide the guidance of “what and how” IV&V is to be conducted.  Templates support these higher order process assets and existing templates can be found on IMS. 
115. Regarding Software Development Cycle -are you going with a particular approach that the software vendor is using?
Answer: Yes, our IV&V approaches are consistent with and supportive of the development lifecycle being employed by the Projects we support. 
116. What percentage is functional testing and what percentage is performance testing?
Answer:  This percentage is not known. This aspect is driven by what is needed to gain assurance that the software will work reliably and safely.  If the need is to have more functional-based testing then that is an option for IV&V, if the need is to have more performance-based testing then that is our option as well.  A ratio is not used as a guide; it is driven by the need.
117. Do you anticipate hardware FPGA?
Answer: The Government does not understand this question, suggest resubmitting.   We assume the question is related to “Do you anticipate performing IV&V on FPGAs”?  Given this assumption, the NASA IV&V Program is responsible for validating and verifying mission critical and safety critical behaviors on the mission, as such the IV&V Program may or may not perform IV&V on FPGAs depending on what behaviors FPGAs are chosen as the design solution for realizing the behaviors in scope for IV&V. 
118. Do you audit the vendors/developers and how do you communicate error?
Answer: The Agency maintains other programs and organizations to perform audits of developers/vendors.   As requested, the IV&V Program provides resources to these programs and organizations. Once IV&V identifies technical issues in a project the issues will communicated directly to the development project.
119. To what extent are you using model based development and testing?
Answer: The IV&V Program is tasked with providing software assurance related services, not development related services.  Our software assurance services are wide ranging and utilize various approaches including model based.   The extent in which a particular approach, model based or any other, is used depends on the nature of the work to be performed, our understanding of the requirements, and the level of assurance to be provided. 
120. What is competency requirement between IVV and spacecraft software engineering? Where is your emphasis?
Answer:  In your proposal, you tell us how you would do it. If you think there is a better way, tell us. 
121. Are there more IVV experts or more spacecraft software experts?
Answer: The Offeror maintains the personnel resources required to perform the requirements defined in the SOW/mission forecast.  As such, it is up to the Offeror to determine the best mix of skills, expertise and experience of personnel given the mission forecast needs.
122. Will the SWAT Tools contract be separate?
Answer:  Yes.  The draft Statement of Work is currently available on FedBizOpps. It will be a small business set aside.

123. SOW 3.5.1.  Software Assurance/Discipline Support.  The Department of Homeland Security, the National Institute of Standards and Technology, and the Department of Defense are cooperating and taking the government lead in software assurance [https://buildsecurityin.uscert.gov/swa/index.html  ] to ensure that developed/procured software is free from vulnerabilities, either intentionally designed into the software or accidentally inserted at any time during its life cycle, and that the software functions in the intended manner.  To what extent will the tools, techniques, best practices, and resources be applied to this acquisition?
Answer: The Government interprets this question as to what extent are we applying the items in the referred website to this procurement.  Given this assumption, the Government is not explicitly applying these items to this procurement.  However, the Government does recognize the needs and associated benefits to collaborate with other Government entities and industry to identify, leverage, apply and infuse tools, techniques and best practices into our environment.
124. SOW Section 3.5.1.  Software Assurance/Discipline Support.  To address security risks in both code and software architecture, to what extent are the following industry-standard software security touch points required to be addressed from an IV&V perspective?
-Code Review

-Architectural Risk Analysis

-Penetration Testing

-Risk-based Security Tests

-Abuse Cases

-Security Requirements

 -Security Operations

Answer: the IV&V technical framework (IVV 09-01) and engineering catalog of methods provide guidance on “what and how” IV&V is to be conducted.  If security is a critical behavior of the system, and these items support the attainment of the goals and objectives described in IV&V 09-01, then there may be options to consider when formulating the plan for a particular project.
125. SOW Sections 1.3 & 3.2 - This section requires the IV&V Services contractor to support the acquisition, development and maintenance of SWAT Case Tools.  Is this the same work that is currently being performed by GeoControl under the NASA IV&V Tools Lab Support contract?
Answer: It is similar work; however the SWAT Contractor (currently GeoControl) is responsible for the acquisition, development, and maintenance of SWAT CASE tools.  The IV&V Services Contract is in support of the work being performed by the SWAT Tools procurement.
126. SOW Figure 1-1 - This figure does not seem to separate the formal and informal interfaces between the NASA IV&V Project Manager and the IV&V Contractor.  It is assumed that while the NASA IV&V Project Manager has all the opportunities to meet and communicate with the "IV&V Contractor Team", all "Formal" communication and documentation is exchanged with the IV&V Contract Manager" only.
Answer: The Government intends to remove this figure from the SOW.  
127. Are there procedures in place to record and resolve bugs in software during IV&V? 
Answer: NASA requires development organizations to record and track the status of all defects identified throughout the lifecycle.   Most other entities that the IV&V Program supports or may support in the future typically require the same.  Regarding defects identified by the IV&V Program, the IV&V Program maintains a formal approach to recording and tracking the status of all defects.
128. With regards to timelines, depending on the complexity of a system, it may take a few months to a few years to test. How will this be handled? Based on the software vendor’s project plan the vendor may be working on multiple modules at once, which may be out of sequence. How is this handled? 
Answer: The selected approach to conducting IV&V will take these Project characteristics into consideration when developing the IV&V Project Plan. It is the intent of the Government to develop an IV&V plan that is effective and supportive of these types of project characteristics.
129. Could you define the Government org chart for the IV&V office?
Answer:  Yes, this was provided on chart 25 of the Industry Day presentation (available on the Procurement Proposal Library)

130. What is the current Organization structure of the NASA IV&V Facility, at least down to three levels?
Answer:  See answer to Question #125 above.
131. Please share current challenges and obstacles experienced that could affect this program. Are there improvements the Government wishes to see?
Answer:  IV&V shares the same challenges as most organizations and maintains an overall desire for continuous improvement.  

132. Is CMMI a factor you desire or a requirement for vendors working on mission forecast? If desired, would the need for this capability be reflected in solicitations?
Answer:  CMMI is not a requirement in this procurement.  The IV&V Program is ISO certified.  The IV&V Program supports and believes in the fundamental principles that ISO and CMMI employ.

133. How is OCI going to be addressed?
 Answer:  Avoidance of real or perceived conflict of interest is very important to both NASA and the IV&V Program.  The Offeror should provide their approach to OCI in their proposal submission.

134. How do you determine Project selection for new contractors? Who is in charge?
Answer:  The IV&V Facility Director is responsible for ensuring that appropriate recommendations (for work on specific projects) are communicated to the Chief of the Office of Safety and Mission Assurance and the IV&V Board of Advisors.  (The IV&V Facility Director works with the IV&V team to generate these recommendations.)  The Board also provides recommendations.  The Chief of the Office of Safety and Mission Assurance uses these recommendations and selects the projects that IV&V will provide support to.

135. I understand the contractor that wins this project would be responsible for IV & V as well as providing “support” to several other departments such as R&D, TQE, etc.  This sounds like a bit of a project management nightmare for the IV & V vendor.  a) How is the challenge of balancing all the different agendas going to be handled?  b) Who is responsible for project selection?  c) Naturally, NASA management is involved; but, I assume the IV & V contractor as well? 
Answer:  a) Effective communication and negotiation across the IV&V Program will be essential to vendor and IV&V Program success.  When competing priorities arise and cannot be resolved by the office leads (if appropriate), the decision will be provided by the IV&V Facility Director.
b) See answer above.

c) See answer above.
136. BTW, printing an IV&V web page wastes a lot of black ink because of the black background.  NASA could go greener by changing the background to white! 
Answer:  IV&V adheres to NASA web design/format requirements.

137. Section 3.5 - What kinds of products, besides documents, have been developed by the IV&V SMA support function in the past?
Answer:  The SMA Support Office has generated a range of products to help NASA SMA Offices meet the requirements of the NASA Software Assurance Standard and the NASA Software Safety Standard.  Examples include support of Fault Tree Analysis, Preliminary Hazard Analysis, technical guidance for NPR 7150 development, and software classification assessments.
Workspace & Facilities
138. Will space be assigned to contractor on a first come basis?

Answer: No. Contractor space is assigned by the Government after considerable review of various data points and factors.  

139. Are all servers downstairs? Any offsite storage? 
Answer: All servers are located at 100 University Drive (Bldg 1).  The government does not provide any offsite storage as part of this procurement.  The IV&V Program is required to maintain a Records Management Program that continuously assesses information and data tagged as records by the Government.  These records may be transferred to off-site Government facilities for long-term archival as applicable and consistent with Government, Agency and IV&V Program requirements. 

140. What groups other than IV&V are in here or is it all IV&V?
Answer: The IV&V Program occupies suites 2200 and 2300 at 5000 NASA Blvd (Bldg 2).  The other suites are occupied by other organizations. The IV&V Program also occupies the majority of 100 University Drive (Bldg 1). NASA also hosts other tenants in Bldg 1.
141. Who does ergonomic assessments for contract employees in this facility?

Answer: Ergonomic assessments are usually done during the NASA IV&V Program’s Safety Awareness Campaign (SAC).  The assessments are performed by WVU.  The IT Group will set up computer resources from an ergonomic perspective upon request.
142. Is there any “secure” space in the Fairmont IV&V Facility?
Answer:  There is currently no “secure” space at 100 University Dr. or 5000 NASA Blvd.  The highest level of classification we support is “Sensitive but Unclassified”
143. Is the PIV going to be required when staff already have security clearances? 
Answer: Yes. PIV will be required of all contractor staff.

144. What are your expectations of locations? What access do you have if you are doing remote work?
Answer: Onsite all is provided; offsite you are provided VPN capability. You will receive a token and an account .The rest is up to your contractor.  Offsite contractors must meet minimum operability guidelines, which can be provided by the IT Group.  Failure to abide by these suggestions will result in degraded performance for those using the VPN, which we will not support beyond the existing NASA infrastructure. IV&V currently has two OC3 connections to the NASA backbone and a SSL based VPN client from Juniper.
145. What support infrastructure (computers, networks, storage, workstations, tools) is available to the contractor to conduct and support IV&V activities?  Is there a diagram available that depicts the infrastructure(s) at the IV&V facility? 
Answer:  On site contractors are given Class 3 (engineering) computers.  There are several diagrams which will eventually be available.  There are two primary networks at the Facility:  WVURC (for IV&V work) and NASA-Only (for NASA specific applications like NCAD and IPAM).  There will also be a public wireless guest network and a NASA-Only corporate network. Contractor networks will not be permitted in Building 2. WVURC maintains an e-mail server (MS Exchange), document repository (Livelink ECM) and SWAT servers.  SWAT servers are based on Window and Solaris.  SWAT maintains all IV&V related tools.  Software requests for new tools can be submitted in one of three ways (IT software request, SWAT tool request, or an Enterprise Architecture request).  

